
1

  The Northampton Planning Board
Minutes of Meeting

September 22, 2016, 2016
City of Northampton Hearing Room 18, 212 Main St., Northampton, MA

Members Present: Time

R Chair, Debin Bruce 

R Vice Chair, John Lutz

R Ann DeWitt Brooks

R Karla Youngblood

R Mark Sullivan

R Theresa “Tess” Poe

R Dan Felten, Associate Member 7:10 pm

R Alan Verson, Associate Member

Staff:

Planning Director, Wayne Feiden

R Senior Planner, Carolyn Misch

7:00 PM  Debin Bruce opened  Public Comment

Richard Guzowski, 64 Nonotuck Street, voiced his concern about zoning allowances that are 
eroding green space and he suggested might conflict with sustainability goals and that 
condominiums and high rises were inappropriate..  He also suggested that the Board had not 
adequately allowed his comments to be presented and felt resident’s opportunities to comment 
had been truncated.

Sara Northrup 147 Hinckley Street, expressed disappointment about the level of detail in the 
conditions granted for the 121 Hinckley Street project.  She suggested it would be appropriate to 
take another re review of the zoning.

7:11 PM  Debin Bruce opened the Special Permit application for the minor addition less than 30’
tall & greater than 5’ setback Christian Science Society 46 Center St, Northampton, Map ID 
31D-126.

Jonathan Archibald, Porth Architects presented the application.

Staff described the need for the special permit.



2

John Lutz asked about relation to the reading room project previously approved.

Staff confirmed that these were two distinct projects.

Tess Poe asked if there will be an ADA compliant access?

Staff confirmed there would not be a new access.

Mark Sullivan noted the rationale for the special permit.

There was no public comment.

Upon motion by Mark Sullivan and second by John Lutz, the board voted unanimously to close 
the hearing.

Upon motion by Tess Poe and second Ann DeWitt Brooks the board voted unanimously to 
approve.

7:15 PM  Debin Bruce opened the Zoning Text Change in URA, URB, SR and RR to reinstate 
allowance for large scale photovoltaic arrays that were adopted in 2011 but inadvertently 
removed in subsequent zoning amendments.

Staff described PV changes and need for the addition.

There was no public comment.

Upon motion by Tess Poe and second by Mark Sullivan the Board voted unanimously to close 
the hearing and recommend approval of the changes.

Staff presented the ANR for Westhampton Rd.
Upon motion by John Lutz and second by Ann DeWitt Brooks, the Board voted unanimously to 
have the plans endorsed.

Staff presented the Baker Hill Rd, ANR.  Upon motion by Tess Poe and second by Mark 
Sullivan the Board voted unanimously to authorize endorsement.

7:30 PM Debin Bruce opened the Continuation of request by Michael’s house for 18 lot parking 
lot 31B-310.

John Furman presented changes to the site with 12 spaces toward the building with nine spaces 
set aside as reserve for future build-out. The additions to the plan include Yew shrubs -3’ on 
center 3’ tall on northerly side.

Furman described the drainage berm planned for the driveway entrance to hold back 6” and the 
measured light on the existing pole distributes 22 footcandles and is leased from National Grid.



3

Mark Sullivan asked if the entrance would be used by staff.

John Lutz asked about original 18 space lot, now what is on the table is 21.

John Furman noted that the stormwater system has excess capacity to accommodate 21 spaces.

Ann DeWitt Brooks asked if the Yews were only planted with additional 9 spaces.

Alan Verson asked why the number of spaces were increased from previous plan?

Andrew Crystal, representing O’Connell Development Group, confirmed the need that all
existing spaces are taken by residents and there is no place for staff or  visitors.  He submitted a 
petition to board from residents showing support for expanded parking.

The Board discussed the  effect of phasing for parking installation and notification to Board.

Alan Verson stated they should just evaluate it as if the full 21 spaces will be created.
Dan Felten noted that this was a good effort by the applicant to address neighborhood’s 
concerns.

Crystal said they could eliminate the light on the post.

Constance Cogswell, 95 State Street,  submitted a letter while asking why there was a need for 
additional spaces claiming there has never been a demand for parking.

Bruce Solman  28 Trumbull Rd, asked that the new parking be restricted to visitors/staff onlyand 
asked about snow removal and drainage during the winter.

Susan Grant 24 Trumbull Rd. spoke against the expansion of the parking lot stated that it would 
degrade the neighborhood.

Christina Showning, on-site manager a Michael’s House described the current trends in the 
resident population, which has changed over the years.  There is no visitor/staff parking

Don Grant, 24 Trumbull Rd showed picture of area after recent rain storm and suggested that 
only the 12 spaces should be approved.
Debin Bruce asked if lighting was a problem?

Grant said it wasn’t a problem for him.

Barbara Brooks Michaels House resident confirmed that there are no visitor spaces.

Dorothy Meehan 32 Trumbull asked about controlling the people who walk across the property 
and voiced a concern about snow banks piling up.

Gogswell said there should be no more than 1 space per unit.



4

Debin Bruce clarified that the proposal would result in far fewer than 80 spaces.

The Board discussed possible conditions and trees.

Tess Poe noted her concern about additional parking lots being  created.

Dan Felten noted his support of modifications and changes.
John Lutz noted that the Board does need to consider the population in the building.

Mark Sullivan asked if they could condition snow removal.

Andrew Crystal emphasized that there is no current drainage problem.  There was one incident 
years prior that occurred on the easterly property. He also suggested that if no onsite staff 
parking is provided, it would push staff to park on the streets in the neighborhoods.

Upon motion by Alan Verson and second by Ann DeWitt Brooks the Board voted unanimously 
to close the hearing.

After discussing conditions and upon motion by John Lutz and second by Ann DeWitt Brooks the 
Board approved the permit with conditions unanimously.

Upon motion by Dan Felten and second by Ann DeWitt Brooks, the Board voted to approve 
minutes of 9/8.

Debin Bruce described CPC appointment.  Ann DeWitt Brooks suggested they could swap 
transportation and cpc.
Upon motion by John Lutz and second by Tess Poe, the Board voted to recommend the two 
switch committee assignments with Ann DeWitt Brooks taking the CPC slot.

Adjourn 8:50  PM


